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In DepoItation Proceedings 

A-I0393612 

Decideil 0'11 B oaril A.ugwt 18, 1966 and December ~1, 11)66 
," " Deoithd 1n.J ,A:etor.ru11/ GefWl'at August 30, 1968 

, " 

ConvietJ0D uniler 18 .U.S.O. 1071 ot ,knowingly harboring and concealing a 
;person for whose arrest a warrant has been issued is conviction of a crime 
mvolvmg moral turpitude. ' . 

I ,. ~ . • • 

CHARGE: 

Order: Act of 1952-Sectlon 241(a)(4) [8 U.S.O. 1251(a)(4)]-Convicted 
of a crime cQmmltted with1l1 five years after entry 
and sentenced to a year or more (18 U.S.C. 4, 311, 
1071). 

ON BEB'.Al.F 01' lasPoNDEN'l': 
Ben O. Shapero, Esquire 
2002 cadillac Tower 
Detroit, Wchfpn 48226 

ON BEIL\L1' OF SEBVlCEl : 

L. Paul WinfDgs 
General Counsel 

BEf.ORE TBE'BO~D 

. (August 18, 19665" 

Th:i..I:l is an appeal from the order of the special inquiry officer order­
ing respondent deported on the charge stated in the caption. 

:Respondent, a 46-year-old twice divorced female, a native and citizen 
of Canada, was admitted to the United States for permanent :resi­
dence on December 5, 1955. After an interval of commuter status she 
took up residence in the United States (January 31, 1959). The Service 
charges she is deportable because she was convicted on April 23, 1965 
in the United States District Court at Detroit, Michigan for offenses 
arising out of incidents which began about September 1, 1960 and 
continued to March 1961. Respondent received a suspended sentence 
to imprisonment for two yeal'S. Counsel contends the crimes do nut 
involve moral turpitude. 

The facts revealed by the indictment are tha.t Thomas Viola, con­
victed. for murder in the Stare of Ohio, sta.rted serving a sentenca OT 
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life impri!;oIUnl}nt in 1946. "As part of a conspiracy; he escaped from 
custody in 1960. Other members of the conspiracy rented an apartment 
for him. Subsequently, the respondent rented an apal1fment for him 
and lived wiLh him. All ths conspirators harbored and ooncea.led 
Viola. . 

Respondent was convicted on four counts. Count one charged her 
with violating 18 U.S.C. a'll which. makes it a crime for persons to con­
spire "either to commit any offense against the United States, or to 
defraud the United States." The count charged there was a conspiracy 
"to cODm* o1fen~es ag~~ the Unit~d States, that is, violations of 
Title 18, United StateS Code; sections 1078,4 and 1071." (Respondent 
was not convicted under section 1078; she was convicted under sections 
371,4 and 1071 (two counts).) 

A conviction for conspiracy to commit an offense does not involve 
moral turpitude unless the substantive crime involves moral turpitude 
(Matter of E-;9 I. & N. Dec. 421,422; Matter 01 p-, "5·r. &'N. Deo. 
582; and lflattor of S--, 2 I • .& N. Dec: 225). We do not believe tha.t 
moral turpitude is involved in the substalitive violations here (18 
U.S.C.4 and 18 U.8.C.1071). , 

Count .three and count fOJlf charged harboring cd Viola for a dif­
ferent period o~ time. Section 1071 of Titl6 18, United Sfutes' Code, 
makes it a crime knowingly to harbor or conceal a person, for whose 
arrest a warrant has been issued. It carries with it a fine of ' not more 
than $i,QoO or im.p~oriment of not more than oJ?e year. We do not 
belie'V9 this crime, involves mora.} turpitud~~'it does not ~uire':force~ 
it does hot"reqidi'e an evil intent, and it does not require the' commis­
sion of au 'act that is of the ruene5lS or d~ra.vity needeiflem a finding 
that moral turpitude is involved. It is not even necesSary ,that a eon­
viction exist or tha.t there be' an escape from prison; ii is only neces­
S'9,ry thl;tt there be a, wariant ontStJtnr1ing. (The fact that It conviation 
exists merely enhances punishment.) The 'act for which the person is 
sought or for which he was convicted is imma.terial. A mother can be 
convicted for harboring her son or a wife her husband under this 
statute. . ' " , 

It is the inherent'nature 'of the offense under any and all circum­
sta.nces and not exaggerated forms of the crime which' determine 
whether a crime involves moral turpitll:de (U.s. em '1'61. JJ[f1III,t!,6Zla v. 
Z?IIIlIl1WfflUl/I/" 71 F. 8upp. 534, E.D. penmi.)'. In other words, it is not 
what the convicted person did but what;the law defines that determilles 
if moral turpitude is present. We havo horo 0. caso of hM"borhlg. Prece­
dents hold that more serious orimes somewhat related do not involve 
moral tul:pitude. A court has ruled that one convioted for breaking 
prison has not committed a crime involving moral turpitude { U.s. eaJ 
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'feZ. M OfIlzella v. ZWlIl'M1"Inan, 8u/jJ1'a). In Matter 0/ J -, 4 I. & N. Dec. 
512, a conviction for attempting to escape from a Massachusetts re­
formatory was held not to involve moral turpitude although there was 
an assault and overpowering of a 'guard. The statute violated did not 
define escape in the terms of intent nor did it speak of force or 'do­
lence.In Matter 0/ B-, 5 L & N. Dee. 538, we held that unlawfully 
aiding one to escape from jail was not a crime involving moral turpi­
tude. Under these circumstances, we do not believe a. conviction under 
18 U.S.C. 1071 would be considered by society as an act of baseness 
or vileness or depravity in private or social duties which man owes his 
fellow man or society in general (U.8. 6(D 1'61. Mf1flI3eZla v. Zimnl-8rman, 
aup'I'a, p. 587). 

In reaching the conclusion that moral turpitude was imtolved, the 
special inquiry officer relied upon the fact that Viola had been con­
victed for the crime of murder. As we have pointed out, conviction 
under 18 U.s.C. 1071 may be ha4 whether the person harbored has 
been convicted or llUt. It is only neoessa.ry that there be a WIlt'rnnt, out­
standing. Although punishment is enhanced if the person harbored 
has been convicted, it is not necessary that the conviction be of a crime 
whieh itself involves moral turpitude. The fact that Viola was eon­
victed and the nature of the crime fpr ·which he was convicted is there­
fore immaterial in determining whether respondent's cOlwiction for 
harboring involved moral turp'itude. , _ 
, The conviction under 18 U.S.C. 4, (misprision of a felony) d~ not 
involve moral turpitude. The sect~on makes it a 4}J;Une for a person who 
knows of the commission of a felony to conceal the fact from a proper 
authority. ViOlatiOll is punisha.ble by fine up to $500 or imprisonmp.nt 
up to three years or both. Here again, n~ither the means by or intent 
with which -misprision is committed, nor the nature of the crime con­
cealed is a factor. If aiding a prisoner to escape who has been convicted 
does not involve moral turpitude; it is ~eult to see how the mere 
failure to furnish informa.tion as to the escape should invoh-e moral 
turpitude. ,. 

The record fa.ils to establish that the crmes of which the respond­
ent was convicted involved moral turpitude. The proceedings will be 
terminated. 

The speci~l inquiry officer has properly dispo.sed of contentions of 
counsel concerning tb.e.i'el~tion of the time of conviction and entry, 
and the nature of a suspended sentence under the immigration laws. 
We .6:nd it unneoossary to rule on wheth~r respondent's adandonment 
of her commuter status to .take up actual residence in the United 
States in 1959 constituted an "entry" for the purposes of the im-
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migration laW'. For the purpose of this discussion, we have assumed 
that an "entry" occurred. . 

ORDER: It is ordered that the proceedings be and the same are 
hereby terminawu. 

BEFORE THE BOARD 

(December 21, 1900) 

The facts have been fully stated in previous orders. The question 
is whether the Board erred in holding" that respondent's convictions 
do not involve moral turpitude. 

Thomas Viola was confuled for life in a state pris«?n after convic­
tion for murder. Respondent and others helped him escape; then 
respondent lived with him as his wife. She was convicted for harbor­
ing a person for whom a warrant of arrest had issued (18 U.S.C. 
1071), and for failing to inform authorities that·a. convicted person 
had traveled interstate to avoid confinement (18 U.S.O. 4; an aotive 
concealment appears necessary for conviction)~:t The counts on which 
respondent was convicted alleged that she had known Viola. was 
sought for lIeeinQ: to avoid imprisomnent after conviction for murder. 
We held that such knowledge was not material·since the laws vio­
lated did not require proof of such knowledge befol'e a conviction 
could be obtained~2 We held that moral turpitude was not involved 
because the laws violated inherently required neither an evil intent 
nor a depraved act for a conviction.s The Service, however, contends 
that since respondent's knowledge that Viola was a. murderer is 
revealed by the reconl (her indictment), we must consider this fact 
as material and .. with it as a part of our delibera.tions find that she 
committed acts which were turpitudinous in na.ture. In other words, 
the t!onb>.ntion nppears to be that the test as to moral turpitude is 
not whether the law requires tUl'pitudinous acts for a conviction, but 

1 A conviction for conspiracy to commit the previously mentioned offenses 
(18 U.S.C. 371) need not be discussed since such a conspiracy conviction does 
not involve moral turpitude unless the substantive crime does. 

II The fact that the person harbored had committed a felony or that he had 
been convicted did affect punishment. However, allegations pertinent to the 
enhancement of punishment are not material In determIning whether moral 
turpitude is involved (U.S. em reZ. Za1!ara'1lo V. Oorsi, 63 F.2d 157, 758 (2d 
Cir., 1933). 

8 See United States v. Oley, 21 F. Supp. 281, 282 (D.C.N.Y., 1938) " ••• whUe 
it might be regarded as inhuman and unnatural on the part of a wife to 
surrender her husband to the authorities and contrary to the instincts of 
bUman ;beings to do so, nevertheless wives caD be convicted of lllegally harbor­
ing their husbands." 
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whether the record shows that the alien committed turpitudinous 
aots. We believe the Service position is erroneous and arises out of 
(1) a. misreading of the precedents, and (2) reliance on a varia.nt 
rule which is confined mainly to broadly worded statutes of a type 
not involved here. 

We shall first state the general rule for determining whether u. 
conviction involves moral turpitude under immigt·ation la\'\"s. 

[Moral turpitude] must be determined in the first instance from a consideration 
of the crime as de1lned by the statute. If, as defined, it does not inherently or in its 
essence involve moral tnrpitude, then no matter bow immoral the alien may be. 
or how iniquiUous his conduct may have been in the partiCUlar instance, he 
cannot be deemed to ba'\'e been guilty of base, vile, or depraved conduct, U.S. C3I 

ret Zallaraflo V. Oorsi, 68 F. (2d) 757 (C.C.A. 2nd, 1938) ; U.S. ea: rel. Meger v. 
DafJ. 54 F. (2d) 886 (O.O.A. 2nd, 1981) ; U.S. el1J ret MyU.us v. UkZ. 8UJlM [203 
Fed. 152 (S.D.N.Y., 1918). afi'd 210 Fed. 860 (CoC.A. 2nd, 1914)]; 89 Op. Atty. 
Gen. 213, 220 (1938); 87 Op. Atty. Gen. 298 (1938). It is only where the statute 
includes within its scope offenses which do and some which do not inl'olve moral 
t11rJ)itude. and is so drawn that the o1fenses which do embody mOral obloquy 
are defined in divisible portions of the statute aDd tnose wInch do Dot 111 olbl!r 
such portion. that the record of conviction, i.e., the indictment (complaint or 
:Information), plea, verdict and sentence Is examined to ascertain therefrom 
under which divisible :portion of the statute the conviction was had and deter­
mine therefrom whether moral turpitude is involved. See U.IS. 6111 re~. G1.Iarl7W V. 

U'hZ, 107 F. (24) 899 (C.C.A. 2nd, lS39; U.S. 6111 rei. Zafjarano v. Oorsi, 8upra; 
U.S. elD reZ. l'alenti v. Kal7llltl~, 1 Fed. Supp. 370 CN.D.N.Y., 1932). 

(Matter of S-, 2 I. & N. Dee. 353, 357 (approved by Atty. Gen. [Clark] 1945).) 
. The 1'111e set forth exists because a standard must be supplied toadminlstrative 
agencies i it eliminates the burden of· going into the evidence in a case; it elimi­
nates the situation where a nonjudicial agency retries a judicial matter; and it 
prevents the situation occurring where two people convicted under the same 
speeUlc law are given different treatment because one indictment may contain 
a fuller or different deseription of the same act than the. other indictment; und 
makes for UDttorm admJ:nistration of law (Matter ot It-, 6 I. & N. Dec. 444, 448). 

In our opinion, tIle Service (luestioning of the general rule is due 
in part to a stra.ined interpretation of the precedents. Mylius, 8upm, 
a. lea.ding precedent for the rule tha.t it is not what the person did 
but what the In.w requires for conviction thn.t determines whether 
moral turpitude is present, instructs the administrative authorities 
to confine themselves to the judgment of conviction and to disregard 
the testimony on which the alien had been convicted. From this, the 
Service concludes that while conduct revealed by te8tim(),IIIY cannot 
be considered for the purpose of deciding whether the alien had en­
gaged in turpitudinous acts, conduct revealed in the record of tIle 
conviction can be. The Service conclusion is unwa.r.r:anted. Tho ques­
tion before the court was essentially whether conduct or law violated 
was to be used as the test for the turpitudinous na.ture of the con· 
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viction. It is in light of its conclusion that Jaw not concluct was to 
govern that its remarks must be viewed. . 

In MyliU8 the court said the law must inherentllu involve moral 
turpitude. The Service interpretation would nullify the court's hold­
ing; for, it stands to reason that, if knowing what law has been vio­
lated, the Service cannot find moral turpitude without considering 
the conduct or <the alien, it il5 not the Zaw violated th8lt involves moral 
turpitude, but the alien's o~. 

The court in MyUU8 was moved to make law, not conduct control­
ling so that there would be equal treatment of aliens convicted un­
der the same law. Contrary to this concept, the Service would make 
deportable the alien whose indictment specifies base conduct, while 
another alien whose indictment lacks detail, but who was guilty of 
similar conduct and who was convicted under the same law, would 
not be deportable. 

Many courts have read Myliu8 as requiring the law to inherently 
invulve moral. tUl'pituue. III U.s. ew re~. Tepl:ll' v. Mftkr, 87 F. Bupp. 
285 (S.D.N.Y., 1949), the court listing many citations held that 
when the provisions of law violated are known, and the fact of con­
viction has been esta.blished, it is not even necessary to ha.ve 't.h.6 in­
dictment in the record since the test is whether the law inherently 
involYes moral turpitude. 

Courts have refused to consider conduct all-O'Lon by the record 
when th~ law did not require proof of such conduct for a. conviction. 
In Hir8ch, v. /7flII1I,ig'l'ation a'lUJ, Naturrilization 861"/)£oe, 308 F. 2d 
562, 567, (9th Cir., 1962), the court disregarded a.llegations in an 
indictment concerning the making of "false and fraudulent state­
ments" since conviction was possible without proof of a fraudulent 
act. In U.s. em. 'I'sZ. G1J.ariru:J v. Uhl, 107 F.2d 399 (2d Cir., 1989), 0.1-
legrutions in an indictment that the alien was in po:s:seSflion of an in­
strument commonly used to commit burglary and larceny were dis­
regarded since conviotion was possible without proof that it was these 
crimes which the alien intended to commit. In U.s. sm rsZ. VaZenti 
v. Karnath, 1 F. Supp. 370 (N.D.N.Y., 1932), allegations in an in­
dictment as to robbery were disregarded because not required for 
conviction. Administratively, the rule has been similar. In Jlatte'/' of 
B-, 6 I. & N. Dec. 98, 106-108, allegations of the indictment as to 
commission of acts of intimidation were disregarded as wmecessary 
to conviction. In Mattsr of B-, 6 I. & N. Dec. 444, 447-454, allega­
tium; as tu cumpelling cUUllIl!ssiull 01 imwol'al acts were disrega.rded 
because conviction did not ha're to be based 011 such acts. 

Service reliance on U.S. em 'I'sZ. Zajfarano v. Oorsi, 63 F.2d 757 (2d 
Cir., 1932), is mispla.ced. The Court l'ema.nded the ca.se so that the in-
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dictment would be considered in determining what section of the law 
'/'oQ,IJ involved. The finding as to moral turpitude was to be based not 
on what the alien did but on what the law punished.· Many cases 
cited by the Service as permitting resort to the record are in accord 
with the rule that conduct shown by the record may be examined to 
determine what particular section of la.w was violated. 

U.8. ere TSl. Manzella v. Zf,mIl1UWITUl/lb, 71 F. Supp. 534 (E.D. Pa.., 
1947), involved an indictment charging the defendant with breaking 
prison and escape with force and arms. TIle Service belief that the 
court would have come to a diiierent conclllsion had the alien's con­
duct been spelled out in the record with greater particularity is not 
justified. The indictment did show violence was used. There is no 
express language to support the Service belief and such an inference 
is without basis in a case in which the court point~d out that, "it i~ 
the inherent nature of the offense under any and all circumstances 
which we are considering. Aggravated forms of the crime are not 
controlling. The proper test [as to the existtmce of moral turpitude] 
is to consider whether a prison breach accomplished by the least 
imaginable force involves moral turpitude" (at 537). The court merely 
looked to the indiotment to determine whether .the alien's colwiction 
had been for a prison breach as well as for escape. The court then 
attempted to determine whether the law inherently inmh"ed mornl 
turpitude and found it did not because it could be violated by acts 
which did not involve moral turpitude. The coult was not concerned 
with the alien's conduct other than to determine what specific pro­
vision of the law the conviction was based on. 

Tssung Ohu v. Oornetl, ~1 F. 2d 929 (9th Oir., 1907), cert. den. 855 
U.S. 892:; while containing some puzzling language, hardly supports 
the Service view that conduct shown by the record may be considered 
even though not an essential part of the erime. 'VA note the court 
agreed there should be no consideration of "ulmecessary adjectives 
added to the indictment by a 'zealous and over careful prosecutor'." 
(at 936) The fact is that moral turpitude was found because the 
conduct in question (fraud) had to be established in order to obtain 
a conviction (Tomli1l8on v. Lefkowita, 334 F. 2d 262, 266 (5th Cir., 
1964), cert. den. 379 U.S. 962). 

'On page 7 of the Service motion, mention of U.S. efI!. reJ • .Robinson v Day. 
1i1 F.2d 1022 (o.A.. 2, 1931) appears unintentional. It is the ZafJarano case 
which ,,&1 aettiRUy tbA Rnbject of the discussion. 

II The concurring opinion indicates that conduct outride the record may be 
considered in determ.iDiDg whether a crlme involving moral turpitude had 
been committed. 
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Bisaillon v. Hogan, 257 F. 2d 435 (9th Cir., 1958), cert. den. BiBail­
Zon v. Sureolc, 358 U.S. 872, an immigration case involving convic­
tions for knowingly making false statements to induce the issuance of 
passports, indicates that a law need not inherently involve moral tur­
pitude. However, it is noted that the finding of deportability turned 
upon the fact that the statute defined a crime likened to perjury which 
it was conceded involved mornl turpitude. Moreover, 0. later decision 
in the same circuit, Wadman v. Immigration aml Naturalieation 
Se1"Vice, 329 F.2d 812 (9th Oir., 1964), reveals that the court when 
confronted with oonduct shown by the record to cleady involve moral 
turpitude (receiving goods, knowing them to have been stolen) held 
that the conviction involved moral turpitude because oO'llllJiotion oould 
not be luul withottt p1'ooj 01 gu,iZty knowledge. (Under the Service 
theory, the court should have been able to find moral turpitude whether 
the law required guilty knowledge or, not, since the record showed 
that the conduct involved moral turpitude.) 

The .Bel'vice position is ill part due also to its mil5Use of a variant 
rule. The nriant rule, confined to broadly worded laws, permits con­
sideration of conduct not only to determine the particular portion 
of law violated, but a1!'1(1 to detArmim~ whether mora.l tnrpitude W9.!!I 

involved. '. 
A brief review of the variant rule will be made. Some laws (as the 

aIle in JfyUus) cOlldelIDl acts ill terms wlrlchhave gained particularity 
(murder7 theft, libel, etc.); other laws, because of the number and 
varied nature of the acts which they desire to condemn, find it difficult 
to state the acts with particularity and, therefore, condemn acts in 
a general sense (immoral conduct, committing a crime, etc.) or con­
demn acts which produce a certain result (making a person a juvenile 
delinque.nt). Where a conviction is based on a generally worded law 
which could be violated by the doing of acts some of whioh do and 
some of which do not involve moral turpitude, it would appear from 
11/ yZius, which requires consideration of the law in its minimum upect, 
that moral turpitude is not involved even if the information reveals 
that the specific act of the convicted person did involve moral turpi­
tude. This approach was attempted but after some searching, a con­
trary conclusion ",'as reached ill cases involving these generally worded 
laws. 

Matter of 0-, 5 I. & N. Dec. 65, involved a conviction for contribut­
ing to the delinquency of a minor. The informa.tion showed that the 
alien's conduct was abhorront • .Application of MyUua resulted in a 
finding that moral turpitude was not involved because the law could 
have been violated by acts not turpitudinous. However, upon recon­
sideration, the Board settled on the rule that in "broad divisible 
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statutes which invol\Te acts which do nnd acts which do not im'olve 
moral turpitude" the act of the individual as shown by the record 
may be used to determine whether moral turpitude is involved.6 Serv­
iee attempt to use the Yariant rule was rejected by th~ Buanl in a CR56 

which did not invohre a broad statute even though the conduct wns 
described in the record (Matter of B-, 6 I. & N. Dec. 98). The Board 
did not obHternte this distiuC"tion in subsequent cases (see M atte'1' of 
Lethbridge, Int.. Dec. No. 1539; Matter of 0-: 7 I. & N. Dec. 114). 
Since we do not haYe before 11S a broadly worded law, we need not 
further discuss this ,-ariant l'ule or the Service cited cases dealing 
with it.1' 

In the instant case, the Myli'U8 rule must be applied. The law defines 
the conduct necessary for com'ietion with particularity and (as shown 
in our order of August 18, 1966) does not make the conduct relied 
upon by the Service (knowledge that the person involved was convicted 
of murder) an element of the crime. Since our conclusion must be based 
only on thaI, which had to be I5hoWD to esta.blish guilt, we believe that 
we correctly found moral turpitude was not involved in respondent's 
convictions. 

ORDER! It is ordered that the motion be and the same is hereby 
denied. 

Thomas J. Griffin, Alember, Dissenting: 

There is a basic precept in logic that one cannot assume to be true 
that which he is see~g to establish. This is called petitio principii, or 
''begging the question." There is a second principle of logic which 
states that one argument cannot be answered by resorting to a 
second argument having no relevance to the first. This is called 
igrwratio eleMhi. The majority opinion is in violation of these precepts 
and, theretore, is illogicalll.ud 1n error. I am, accordingly, filing my 
dissent. 

Section 1071, 18 U.S. C., is part of Chapter 49, whicll is captioned 
"Fugitives From Justice." Section 1071 is captioned "Concealing 
Person From Arrest." Section 1071 reads as follows: 

Whoever ha~bors or conceals any person for whose arrest a warrant or process 
has been issued under the provisions of any law of the United States, so as 
to prevent bis discovery and arrest, after notIce of knowle(lge of the fact that 

• Using MlIlifUt terminology, an explanation given, is that the general statute 
11:1 a dlvhdble one, find one of its divisions puntshGS only aets of It tUrpltl1dinous 
nature which are similar. 

~ pUr discussion of the variant rule, siu~e we do not have such a situation be­
fore us,.1s general and for the purpose of contrast. 
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a warrant or process has been issued for the apprehension of such person, shall 
be fined not more than $1,000, or imprisoned not more than one year, or both: 
except that if the warrant or process issued on a charge of felony, or after 
eoudetion of such pet'snn of llny nffl'!nsl'!. thl'! punishment shall be 8. fine of not 
more than $5,000, or imprisonment for not more than five years, or both. 

The majority opinion is to the effect thnt the crime is described with 
particularity nnd t.hnt. it. rnnnnt he said of itself to describe an Rct 
involving moral turpitude. With -this I differ. 

The majority cites with approval 37 Op. Atty. Gen. 293. At page 
294 of the above cited volume the Attorney General describes moral 
turpitude as: 

, •• everything done contrary to justice. honesty, or good morals Is done with 
turpitude. It iii' 8. vague term, its meaning depending to flome extent upon the 
state of public DIorals, It is defined as anything done ccmtrarll to iI/stIce, honesty, 
principle, or good morals; an act of baseness, vileness or depral'lty In the pril"ate 
and 80ciaZ ilutie8 which a man owes to his fellow man, or to sooiety in DeJl6ral 
contrary to the accepted and customary rule of riOht and duty bet/ceen man and 
man .. ', . [Emphasis supplled.] 

Now to hold that one who has been convicted of concealing or harbor~ 
ing with knowledge or notice that a warrant or process had been issued 
for the arrest of that person is not guilty of a erhne involving moral 
turpitude amoi.mts to ignoring completely the factors of anything 
':done contrary to justice, " . . and social duties ,vhich man mves to 
his fellow man or to society in general." Lega.lly constituted authorities 
were empowered to arrest .the felon Viola.. For personal reasons the 
respondent prevented that arrest with knowledge that a process had 
been iSS1.1ed for 'Viola's arrest. Thus, the respondent effectively ob. 
structed the arrest and she, therefore, ignored certain social duties 
wInch she owed to her fellow man and to society in general. A con­
viction under 1071 necessarily involves obstruction of justice and 
frustration of lawful authority. The act for which the respondent 
stands convicted was certainly done contrary to justice. In the Matter 
of E- 9 I. & N. Dec. 421, this Board held that a conviction for imped­
ing, obstructing and attempting to defeat the lawful nmctions of an 
agency of the United States is a crime involving moral turpitude. 
The collocation of the words "harbor and conceal" in the statute 
conclusively shows that it is directed to those who abet others in 
avoiding process and arrest after notice or knowledge of the fact thwt 
a warrant or process has been issued for the apprehension of the 
fugitive. The word "harbor" in a crhninal statute connotes sur­
reptitious concealment. Umted State8 v. Mack, 112 F.2d 290,291, and 
is basically related to the o:ffense of accessory after the faet, of. Ohap­
man v. United State8, 3 Fed. Supp. 903 (1933) -and United States v. 
Venturini, 1 Fed. Supp. 213. 
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.As 'Ii verb, defined by Webster (The New International Dictionary, 
2d ed., unabridged), it is defined as "to afford lodging to; to entertain 
as a guest; to shelter; to receive; to give a refuge to; to contain; to 
indulge or cherish (a thought or feeling) ;-now usually with reference 
to evl1, esp. unlawfu7, act or intent." [Emphasis supplied] This defiini· 
tion 'Was cited with approval by tIle court in Herrera v. U'llited Etates, 
208 F.2d 215, 218. 

In the case of Denni8 v. State, 102 Northeast 2d, 650, 653, the Su­
preme Court of Indiana defined the verb "harbor" as meaning to shel­
ter, to give refuge, to give lodging to, caring for and protecting any 
person gulity of a felony. In that same decision the Court defined 
"conceal" as meaning to hide~ to secrete, keep out of sight or pre\"ent 
the discovery of one guilty of a felony. 

From the above description of the crime and with careful considern­
tion of the meaning of moral turpitude, it is obvious that the respond­
ent was convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude. It is my 
firm belief that puulic justice is hampered by al5Sisting the felon in 
evading the law. 

Another facet of the majority opinion which is open to some ques­
tion is found in 9. reading of fnntnote No.3. at page 2 of the opinion. 
The footnote is preceded by the statement in the text to the effect that 
"We held that mora1 turpitude was not involved because the Jaws vio­
lated inherently required neither an evil intent nor a depraved act for 
a conviction." The footnote then cites the case of U'nited States v. 
Oley,21 Fed. Supp. 281,282 (D.C.N.Y.,11)38) and quotes from that 
case as follows: 

• '" • while It might be regarded as inhuman and unnatural on the part of a 
wife to surrender her husband to the authorUies and contrary to the instincts of 
human beings to do so, nevertheless wives can be convicted of illegally harbor­
Ing their blll11banilll. 

This quotation is not entirely accurate inasmuch as it is taken out of 
context with a complete sentence which reads as follows: 

It WOUld, undoubtedly, be diftiuclt to obtain confessions charging wives wfth 
harboring their husbands, and while it might be regarded as inhuman and 
uDnatum on the part of a wife to surrender her husband to the authorities' 
and contrary to the instincts of human beings to do so, nevertheless wIves can 
be convicted of illegally harboring their husbands. 

This, of course, reads a bit differently from the ,vay it is cited by the 
majority opinion, and indeed a complete research of the Jaw on this 
particular point fails to show any case where a wife has been convicted 
of illegally harboring her husband. Furthermore, to use this particular 
aspect of the question as a basis for holding that moral turpitude is 
not involved is certainly an example of ig'fWraeio elonolti. It has no 
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pertinence to the question of moral turpitude, nor does the statement 
have any substantial bearing at all in the case involved. 111 an aUempt. 
at enlightenment on this particular factor, the following cases are 
cit~d as proof positive that wives simply are not prosecuted or con­
victed for illegally harboring their husbands: Staff Y. Ke71y: 74 Iowa 
589,38 N.W. 503; People v. D'Itnn, 53 Hun. 381,6 N.Y.S. 805, '1 N.Y. 
Orim. 173: 5 Blackstone Comm. p. 89; 1 Hale P .C., p. 621; 2 Ha.wkins 
P.C., c. 29, sec. 34. State v. Fitzgerald, 49 Iowa 260 j 1 Whart Crim. 
Law, sec. 71, et 8eq.; 1 Bish Crim. I.J1lw, sec. 358, et 86q. 

I now refer to an aspect of this case which the majority opinion 
has newly cnristened a "variant rule" (an anomalous nomenclature 
which is probably contradictory in.terms). The majority opinion relies 
upon'its interpretation olthe alleged lIfylim rule, which. was stated in 
the case of United State., ere '1'eZ. MlIliu8 v. UTtZ! 203 F.2d 152 (S.D. 
N.Y. 1913), affirmed at 210 Fed. 860 (Circuit Court of .A.ppeals 2d, 
1914), and states arbitrarily that the statu~e here inv-olved is not sum­
ciently. broad to permit resort to the conviction of record. A reading 
of the court's decision in the l1f lIliua case simply does not jibe with the 
majority interpretaltion. That case involved an alien ,vho had been 
(lonvicted of criminal libel prior to his application for entry into' the 
United States and the Immigration authorities were seeking to exclude 
llim from admission on the ground thn·t he had been cOllvicted of a 
.crime involving moral turpitude. In spenking of the right or the 
Immigra;tion authorities 'to ascertain the turpitude of the act com­
mitted, the court stated that the authorities' 
function is not, as It seems to me, to go behind IfI,dgment8 of convlctions and 
determine with respect to the acts disclosed 'by the testimony the questions of 
purpose, motive, and knowledge which are often determinative of the moral 
character of acts. Besides, the testimony Is seldom available and ·to consider It 
In one case and not in another is to depart from uniformity of treatmeut. [Em­
phasis supplled.] 

The court in United States 6re'l'eZ. Zaf!arano v. (JorBi, 63 F.2d '151, 158 
states: 

We have heretofore held that, in determining whether the crime of which an 
aUen stands convicted is one "involving moral turpitude," neither the immigra­
tion omcials nor the courts sitting in review of their actJon may go beyond the 
record of conviction. [Citing cases] They must look only to the inherent natore 
of the crime or to the fact8 charged in t1l.6 indictment npou which the allen was 
convieted, to 1lnd the moral turpitude reqtdslte for deportation for this cause. 
[Emphasis suppUed.) . 

The court thereafter stated on a petition for rehearing in a per curiam 
opinion in which it construed prior language in the case of United 
8ta·tes ere re7. Rooi'MQ')t.v. DOIJ/,.f)1 F.2d.1Q~2,Jpttt the.mean4tg of the 
wording in the Ro'lJi'll8()'{/, case was to the efl'ect that 
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.. It It neither the imndgration oflicials nor the court reviewing their decision may 
go Qutd" tl16 recora rJf con'VictWn to determine whether in the particular instance 
the alien's conduct was immoraL And by the record of conviction we mean tbe 
cnarge (ludktwent), plea, ,"crdiet, and lIenn-nep. {Empbasis sullnlied.] 

In a recent case arising in the Seventh Circuit and decided on 
December 13, 1966l the court there considered a petition to review 
I:I.lld set a5ide an order of deportation of t,nA petitioner, Rassano. The 
petitioner had been convicted of two separate felonies: one in 1934; 
one in 1952. It was Rassano's argument that he had been denied due 
process in violation of the Fifth Amendment, because at the deporta­
tion hearing he was denied the right to show that his 1934 conviction 
WIlS illegally obtained. The court stated: 

The orderly admlnllltration tri' jllstice reQuires that the INS and the reviewing 
court go no further than the record of conviction (the indictment, plea, verdict 
and sentence) to determine whether an alien is deportable under 8 U.S.C. § 1251 (4) 
(1964). The claim bas no legal basis. l]nite4 States ea: 1"eZ. Zai/M'Qno v. Oorsi, 63 
FJ!d '767, "159 (2d Oil'. 1Q.'!Ul) ; ef. TseUflD 01l.u v. oorn,en, 24'1 F.2d 929 (9th Cir.), 
cert. denied, S55 U.S. 892 (1957). 

Thus, it would seem that contra.ry to the majority opinion, the Service 
position is not in error but is eminently correct. Thus, ill the instant 
ease, the Service and we, the Board, have a right to look to the record 
of conviction which includes the indictment herein and contains four 
counts which describe ncts cODlmitted by the l"espondellt certainly 
involving moral turpitude. To hold otherwise would be a distortion of 
the rule in Zaf!tirOlM. This is the guide for ascertaining the function 
of the administrative ajudicators when the law which is violated does 
not desoribe an a.ct which inherent.ly involves moral turpitude. Any 
other conclusion drawn from Jlylius or Zaflara'1lO is ill error. 

There is one final point,in this case having to do with the knowledge 
of the respondent required under section 1071. The record shows that 
the respondent was convicted on all four counts of the indictment "as 
ch~rged". She wa.s thereafter sentenced to imprisonment for a period 
of two years, the execution of which sentence was suspended. The re­
spondent was then placed on probation for n period of two years. 
Referring tQ section 1,071 it can be seen that where tIle perso~l con­
victed had notice or knowledge of the fact tbat a warrant or process 
llad been issued for the person concealed from arrest, the punishment 
is a fine of not more than $1;000,. or-imprisonment for not more than one 
year, or both, except that if the warrant or proc(>SS isslled on a charge 
of felony. or after conviction of such l)e1'so11 of any oft'ense, the pun­
ishment shan be a :fine of not more than $5,000, or imprisonment for 
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not more than five years, or both. Taking the sentence imposed on re­
spondent in its most fal70rable light toward her, it must be concluded 
that the two year sentence imposed after cOllviction for violation of 
section 1071, 371 and 4, Title 18, U.S.C., was meant t.o be concurrent 
sentences and consequently the court must have found that tIle respond­
ent had knowledge ·that the warrant or process issued Oll the charge 
of felony or after conviction of such person of any offense. ** All of 
the above coupled with what we Ilave discussed as to the meaning of 
harboring and concealing together ,,,itll the other elements of the 
erime under Section 1071 "as to prevent 11is discovery 01' arrest," truly 
must be dispositive of the moral turpitude aspect of the crime. 

In summation, it is my position that the statute with its requisite 
of knowledge that process or warrnnt. hns been issued on It charge of 
felony or after conviction of the person harbored for any o~ense 
and that the person harboring does so to prevent the fugitive's dis­
covery and arrest, does of itself describe a crime involving moral 
turpitude. Furthermore, assuming arguendo that the statute fails to 
describe such a crime, then it is my position that under both the MyZi1u8 
and Zaffa'l'ano cases, supra, the Immigration Service can resort to the 
indictment which in this particular case does, indeed, describe a crime 
involving moral turpitUde. 

Marianne B. McConnaughey, Member, Dissenting: 

I concur in Mr. Griftin's dissenting opillion. 

BEFORE TIlE ATTORNEY GENERAL ON REVIEW 

(August 30, 1968) 

The Board of Immigration Appeals, at the request or the Com~ 
missioner of Immigration and Naturalization, h~ referred this mat­
ter to me for review pursuant to 8 CFR 3.1 (h) (1) (iii). The Board, 
by order of December 21, 1966, denied by a vote of 3-2, a motion of the 

•• Section 1071 Indeed requires knowledge and guilty kpowledge. It requires 
a pbyslcal act of the secretIng the body of the fugitIve. (See U'llited. States v. 
Sltapero,1l3 F.2d 891,893 (C.A.2d 1940) ; United State8 v. TltorntO'll,178 F. SuPp. 
42,48 (D.C. N.Y. 1959). Cf. Firpo v. United. States. 261 Fed. 850. 80s (CA. 2d 
1919), wherein the court described the offense "to conceal" means Uto bIde, 
secrete, or keep out of sight. To "harbor" means "to lodge, then care for a1Iter 
secreting the defender." The dissent: in the Flrpn (,A~e whieh disagreed on othor 
grounds, lent weIght to the majority opinion's meaning when it referred -to the 
offense as being "some pltY81caZ act tending to the secretion of the body of the 
defender." Of. also S'Usnjan v. Umted States, 27 F.2d 228. 224 (O.A. 6th, 1928) ; 
lJ'II4.ted. StateR v. G'/'ant • • 55 ]i'l;!d. 414. 415 (lSQS); Jonel1 v. VanZandt, 46 U.S. 
221 (1847).) 
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Immigration and Na.turalization Service for reconsideration of the 
Board's order of August 18, 1966, terminating the proceedings. 

These proceedings were instituted pursuant to § 241 (a) (4) of the 
Immigration and NHitionality Act,8 U.S.C. 1201(o.} (4), which pro­
vides that any alien shall be deported who is conyicted of a crime in­
volving moral turpitude within five years after entry and is then sen­
tenced to imprisonment for '9. year or more. The o'riginal opinion of 
the Board held -that moral turpitude was not involved because the laws 
'that respondent violat.ed did not inherently require force, an evil 
intentor a depraved act for a conviction. 

One of the crimes of which respondent was cOllvicted was harboring 
and concealing a person from arrest in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1071. 
In its original opinion the Board held that a violation of this statute 
would not be considered. by society "as an act of ba:reJl~ or -vilenea& 
or depravity in private or social duties wllich man owes his fellow 
man or society in general" On reconsidemtion two members of the 
Board were of the view that this was a erime t.hat involved moral tur­
pitude. 

It is n crime under 18 U.S.C. 10'71 for anyone to harbor or conceal 
any person for whose arrest a warrant or process has been issued under 
the provisions of any law of the United States, so as to prevent his 
discovery and arrest, after notice or knowledge of the fact thnt n war­
l'ant or process has been issued for the apprehension of sl1ch person. 

The applicable definition of moral turpitude, as enunciated in num­
erous administrative and judicial decisions, includes "anything done 
contrary to justice" or "an aet of baseness * • * in the private and 
sooial duties which a man owes to his fellow man, or to soolAty in 
gener8J." 37 Op. A.G. 293, 294. 

In the light of this definition, I find, as did the dissenting members 
of t.hA "Boam, that the act of which ·the respondent was convicted­
that is, the active and knowing interference with the enfore.ement of 
the laws of the United states in contravention of 18 U.S.C. 1071-
bivalves moral turpitude within the meaning of § 241 (a) ( 4) of the 
Immigration and Nationality Act. 

Accordingly, the decision of the Board whie]} ordered these proct'ed­
ings terminated is reversed. 

Because of my decision on this issue it is llllnecessal'Y to consider 
an, of the other grOlUlds suggested for reversal. 


